ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON & SCOCI AL SERVI CES COW TTEE
April 23, 2001
1:38 p. m

VEVMBERS PRESENT

Senator Lyda Green, Chair
Senat or Loren Lenman, Vice Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Jerry Ward

Senat or Bettye Davis

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al Menbers Present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 198
"An Act establishing the Statew de Suicide Prevention Council; and
providing for an effective date."

MOVED CSSB 198( HES) OUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 115(HES)
"An Act relating to the definition of 'nental health professional
for certain nmental health proceedings and treatnments; relating to
the services of certain nedical professionals in civil proceedings
for the commtnment of certain intoxicated persons; allowng a
physi ci an assi stant or advanced nurse practitioner to certify the
need for energency treatnent as a result of intoxication; and
providing for an effective date."

SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

SENATE BI LL NO. 38
"An Act relating to a new optional group of persons eligible for
nmedi cal assistance who require treatnment for breast or cervica
cancer; and providing for an effective date.™

HEARD AS PART OF THE MEDI CAI D DI SCUSSI ON AND HELD | N COW TTEE

CONTI NUATION OF PRESENTATION ON MEDICAID DI RECTIONS BY THE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES - CANCELLED

PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON
SB 198 - No previous Senate commttee action.

SB 38 - See Labor and Commerce m nutes date 2/01/01 and 2/15/01.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- April 23, 2001



W TNESS REG STER

Ms. Kelly Huber

Staff to Senator Hal ford

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified for the sponsor of SB 198

Senator Rick Halford

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 198

Comm ssi oner Karen Perdue
Departnent of Health &
Soci al Servi ces
PO Box 110601
Juneau, AK 99801-0601
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 198 and discussed the Medicaid
option to cover breast and cervical cancer treatnent.

Ver non Marshal |

Executive Director, NEA-Al aska

114 2nd Street

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 198.

Ms. Mary Diven
Di vi sion of Medi cal Assistance
Department of Health &
Soci al Services
PO Box 110601
Juneau, AK 99801-0601
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Provi ded i nformati on about the Medicaid option
to cover breast and cervical cancer treatnment.

Ms. Nancy Wl ler
D vi sion of Medical Assistance
Departnent of Health &
Soci al Services
PO Box 110601
Juneau, AK 99801-0601
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Provi ded information about the Medicaid option
to cover breast and cervical cancer treatnment.

Ms. Carol Edwards

Al aska Nurses Associ ation

No address provided

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports | egislation that provides Medicaid
coverage of breast and cervical cancer treatnent.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- April 23, 2001



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-37, SIDE A
Number 001

CHAl RWOVAN LYDA CGREEN cal | ed the Senate Heal th, Education & Socia
Services Commttee neeting to order at 1:38 p.m Al nenbers were
present. Chai rwonan Green asked conmittee nmenbers to review the
list of the Governor's appointnents to various boards and
comm ssions and to notify her of any candidates that conmttee
menbers would like to interview She plans to hold a hearing on
t he appointnments on Wednesday. Chai rwonman Green al so announced
that, due to tine constraints, the commttee wll not be taking
public testinmony on SB 38 today. The Departnent of Health and
Social Services (DHSS) wll give its presentation today but
tel econference testinony will be delayed until next Wednesday.

SENATOR DAVI S asked Chairwoman Geen if anyone notified people
earlier that no public testinony will be taken on SB 38 today.

CHAl RAMOVAN CGREEN said that people who had shown interest in
testifying today were notified earlier.

#SB 198
SB 198- STATEW DE SUI Cl DE PREVENTI ON COUNCI L

M5. KELLY HUBER, |egislative aide to Senator Hal ford, sponsor of SB
198 expl ained the neasure as foll ows. SB 198 was designed to help
solve the increasing problemof suicide in Alaska. It is tragic to
| ose a | oved one of any age to suicide, but it is especially tragic
to lose a young person with so much to live for. Suicide is an
ongoi ng epidemc in Al aska; especially in rural A aska and the WMat-
Su Vall ey. Sui cide in preventable. SB 198 will establish a
Statewi de Suicide Prevention Council nmade up of 14 private and
public nmenbers, representing both rural and urban Al aska. The
council wll focus on finding ways to reduce suicide rates, broaden
public awareness of suicide warning signs, and enhance suicide
prevention services and prograns throughout the state. Each March
the council wll bring findings and recomendations to the
| egi slature for consideration. This bill has bipartisan support in
the Senate and Senator Halford asks the commttee to act favorably
on the | egislation.

Number 376

SENATCOR LEMAN asked if any thought was given to appointing nenbers

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- April 23, 2001



of the clergy to serve on the council.

M5. HUBER told Senator Leman that Senator Halford | ooked at placing
a faith-based representative on the council. He felt that it is
inportant to have representation fromrural and urban Al aska and
that instead of placing a faith-based representative on the
council, their advice can be sought through testinony to the
counci | .

SENATOR LEMAN asked if it is the sponsor's intent to have advi sors
to the council.

M5. HUBER said she did not think the sponsor woul d have any probl em
with that approach and that the nore advisors, the better. She
poi nted out that Senator Hal ford was concerned that if the counci
becanme too big, it would be difficult to get consensus and nove
forward. For that reason, he kept the nunber of council nenbers to
14.

SENATOR LEMAN said he believes that sonme of the best qualified
peopl e to provide counsel in the area of suicide are not included
in the bill. He hopes those people can be accessed sonmehow. He
suggested anending the bill to allow the council to appoint an
advi sory panel of an unlimted nunber of people.

SENATOR WARD said he agrees that people from faith-based

organi zati ons should participate with this council, as well as
peopl e who have had personal experience wth suicide, but he
bel i eves the anendnent will overconplicate the bill. He noted the
bill was structured to create principal executive officers, which

brings into the network 14 statew de organi zati ons.

SENATOR LEMAN said it is his intent to broaden the reach of the
council to include people who could be good resources. He noved
the foll ow ng anendnent (Anendnent 1).

Add to Sec. 44.29.330 on page 4, |line 26:
(c) The council my appoint advisors to serve in an
advi sory capacity to the council. The advisors would serve
Wi t hout conpensati on.

He pointed out Anendnment 1 is conceptual to allow the |egal drafter
roomto do sonme wordsm thing.

SENATOR WARD objected and said he believes Amendnent 1 is

unnecessary. He asked Senator Leman to restate Anendnent 1 for
Senat or Hal f ord.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- April 23, 2001



SENATOR LEMAN expl ained to Senator Halford that his anendnment woul d
specifically state that the council nay appoint an advi sory panel
to help it conduct its business and that the panel would serve
wi t hout conpensati on.

SENATOR HALFORD poi nted out that the council can do that whether or
not it is specifically stated in the legislation, but he did not
believe adding it to the legislation harns it in any way. He added
that if all groups that are interested in participating had a seat
on the council, the council would have a nenbership of about 30,
and panels of that size do not work well.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked Senator Leman to restate his notion.
SENATOR LEMAN said a new subparagraph (c) would be added to Sec.
44.29. 330 that would allow the appoi ntnment of an advisory panel to
serve at the pleasure of and advise the council.

SENATOR WARD agai n obj ected and asked Senator Lerman how nuch noney
he anticipates will have to be spent on the advisory panel.

SENATOR LEMAN sai d none by the state.

SENATOR WARD asked if the advisory panel spent noney on office
supplies or travel, whether the noney woul d cone out of the total
effort.

SENATOR LEMAN said it is not his intention to provide for travel.

SENATOR WARD said he would prefer the bill specify that the
advi sory panel be at no cost. He said he is aware that four of the
groups who will have a representative on the panel have subgroups

that specifically deal with suicide prevention. He said he does
not want this effort to supplant noney into these other groups. He
expressed caution that this council should be created to hel p, not
to becone a bureaucracy.

SENATOR LEMAN said he would be happy to identify in Amendnment 1
that the advisory panel serves at the pleasure of the council and
is not entitled to travel and per di em expenses.

SENATOR WARD renoved his objection to Anendnent 1, therefore it was
adopt ed.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN commented that she finds the absence of any

reference to faith-based organi zations throughout SB 198 to be
regrettable.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- April 23, 2001



SENATOR HALFORD noted that a reference to faith-based organi zations
was included in the bill when it was being crafted but the bil
kept getting larger and larger so he assuned faith-based
representatives would cone forward to testify and participate. He
hopes they will be very invol ved and he has no objection to addi ng
further reference.

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN sai d her concern is that the bill should expect
the council to look to faith-based organizations.

SENATOR HALFORD felt many of the appointees to the council could
al so be fromfaith-based organi zations. He repeated that he has no
probl em wi th addi ng such a nenber except for the size of the group

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN sai d she appreciates that but she would like to
add sonme | anguage to the duties section.

Number 1250

SENATOR LEMAN noved to anend (Amendnent 2) Sec. 44.29.350 (4) on
page 5, line to read:

(4) develop healthy communities through conprehensive,
col | aborative, comunity and faith based approaches;

There bei ng no objection, CHAl RMOVAN GREEN announced that Amendnent
2 was adopt ed.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN sai d one of the things she has noticed when these
groups are fornmed is that the council enploys the coordinator
However, it is often the coordi nator who drives the agenda of the
organi zati on, because of the rules of longevity. She asked if SB
198 contains the typical |anguage for the hire of the coordi nator

SENATOR HALFORD said he believes it does and that he shares Senator
G een's concern, except that he thinks the people who are conmtted
to suicide prevention will be committed for a | ong term because of
their personal experiences. He doesn't think they wll be nmanaged
by staff to the extent that sonme of the other boards and
comm ssions are. He felt the people involved in this issue wll be
wel | directed and have a strong sense of where the council should
be goi ng.

CHAl RMOVAN GREEN suggested revisiting this question five years from
Now.

SENATOR HALFORD pointed out that Sec. 44.29.330 could contain a

provision so that the coordinator nust be elected by the board
menbers biannually. He cautioned that the conmttee mght want to

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- April 23, 2001



get another opinion on this matter. He thought that question could
be posed to the Conm ssioner of DHSS or soneone who deals with this
sort of scenario often.

Nunmber 1566

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN noted her concern is based on the fact that she
has seen great frustration on the part of council menbers who can
easily be "flimflamed" by a coordinator. She thought sone type
of mandatory assessnment woul d put a coordinator on notice that the
position is not a career for a lifetime and that they do have to
work with councils that may change directions.

COW SSI ONER KAREN PERDUE, DHSS, told the conmittee that the
council can hire the individual, who would be partially exenpt,
nmeani ng that person serves at the pleasure of the council. It is
i nportant that the individual be accountable to state procedures,
such as procurenent, so the individual needs to be attached to a
depart nent . She suggested addi ng | anguage to Sec. 44.29.330(b)
that says the council shall annually review the performance of the
director.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if that is what DHSS uses for other
positions and whether the council has to take action whether the
enpl oyee is to be retained or not.

COWMWM SSI ONER PERDUE said it is and that the nodel used now for
partially exenpt coordinators is that the council does an annual
review and if the council indicates that the coordinator is not
performng up to certain standards, sonething will be done.

CHAIl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if there is any language in statute that
covers this situation for other directors.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE said she is sure there is but she could not
citeit at this tine.

CHAI RAMOVAN GREEN asked committee nenbers for their opinions of
i nserting such | anguage.

SENATOR LEMAN said he is in agreenent with Comm ssioner Perdue's
suggestion and although Senator Halford is concerned that the
better applicants will nost likely want a long term contract, he
believes there is nothing wong with an annual review.

CHAI RMOVAN GREEN noted that w thout objection, |anguage woul d be

inserted requiring an annual review of the coordinator's position
(Amendnent 3).

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- April 23, 2001



SENATOR LEMAN noved to adopt Amendnent 4, which reads as foll ows:
on page 3, line 29, delete "2" and insert "1" and

on page 4, line 13, add subsection (J) one person who is
a nmenber of the clergy, neaning a mnister, a rabbi, a
pastor, or youth mnister

SENATOR LEMAN sai d the purpose of the first part is to reduce the
nunber of people enployed in the executive branch fromtwo to one.
He al so noted the second part of Amendnent 4 is conceptual so that
what ever definition that exists in state | aw can be used.

SENATOR HALFORD said that as nuch as he would like to see the
nunber of council nenbers remain as | ow as possi bl e, he suggested
t hat a new nenber be added and none be renopved fromthe executive
br anch. He believes that the council will want npre than one
person fromthe executive branch to | ook to.

SENATOR LEMAN suggested that the second person fromthe executive
branch serve on the advisory panel.

SENATOR HALFORD t hought the executive branch people are those who
will put the nost tinme in because it is part of their job
descri ption.

CHAI RMOVAN GREEN suggested just adding a new subsection (J) and
adjusting the total nunber of council mnenbers appointed by the
Governor to 11 on page 3, line 28.

SENATOR LEMAN said he will consider that as an anendnent to his
not i on.

CHAI RMOVAN GREEN noted that wth no objection to increasing the
counci | nenbership from14 to 15, 11 of which will be appointed by
the governor, and adding a new nenber who is affiliated with a
faith-based organi zati on, Amendnent 4 was adopt ed.

SENATOR LEMAN noved to adopt Amendnment 5, which would place a four
year sunset date in the bill based on a four year cycle.

SENATOR HALFORD mai ntai ned that 1988 or 1989 was the last tine a
wor ki ng group was formed to look at this issue and that Al aska's
suicide rate is much higher than many other states. He said he
does not have a problemw th the sunset review but he does not want
it to suggest that the legislature is only making a tenporary
commtnment to this council. He feels this council should be

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- April 23, 2001



ongoi ng.

SENATOR LEMAN sai d he hopes the council will succeed in preventing
suicide altogether but, inreality, that is not likely. H's intent
is not to suggest that the council is tenporary.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN noted the first sunset date would be 2005.

SENATOR HALFORD suggest ed asking the Legislative Budget and Audit
Di vi sion what its schedul e of sunset reviews is as that will be a
factor in the date.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN suggested revi ewi ng the sunset date in the Finance
Committee.

SENATOR LEMAN agr eed.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE stated DHSS is very grateful that this issue is
getting attention and she thanked Senator Halford for his
| eadership on this issue. She noted the |ast conprehensive | ook at
suicide was the result of a Senate bill that passed in 1988
| nnovati ve work was done, but since then, that program has not been
enphasi zed. The problemis conplex, therefore the make-up of the
council is inportant.

Number 2070

SENATOR W LKEN asked if the 13 other councils listed on page 2 have
m ssi ons and neasures attached to themand, if so, whether it would
be appropriate to include in the bill a requirenent that the
Statewi de Suicide Prevention Council develop and present its
m ssions and neasures to the |egislature.

SENATOR HALFORD sai d he does not know about the other councils, but
it would be appropriate to put such a requirenent in the bill

SENATOR W LKEN suggested discussing that in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

Nunber 2170

MR. VERN MARSHALL, Executive Director of NEA-Al aska, commended the
sponsor for introducing SB 198. He noted the feeling of
shal | owness that peopl e experi ence when soneone they know commts
suicide. This bill will hopefully engage communities and suicide
prevention efforts to hel p young peopl e choose to live. He offered
to assist the commttee and council in any way.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 9- April 23, 2001



SENATOR LEMAN sai d that Anendnent 5 was not formally adopted.

CHAI RMOMAN GREEN announced that w thout objection, Amendnent 5 was
adopt ed.

SENATOR DAVIS noted the bill was amended five tinmes by this
commttee, and that several of those amendnents were conceptual

SENATOR LEMAN noved CSSB 198(HES) with its attached fiscal notes
fromcommttee with individual recomendati ons.

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN said she woul d distribute copies of the revised

bill to commttee nenbers as soon as it is drafted.
#
#SB 38

SB_ 38- MEDI CAL ASSI STANCE: BREAST/ CERVI CAL CANCER

SENATOR DAVI S infornmed the conmittee that she is very di sappointed
that no public hearing on SB 38 will occur today. She contacted
many peopl e about this hearing and was not told until she arrived
at the neeting that the public hearing will not occur for another
week. She expressed frustration that she has been working very
hard to get this bill before the commttee, only to find that DHSS
will be giving a presentation on it instead, which it has al ready
done.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN sai d the previous input from DHSS was about the
general Medicaid program not specifically on medical assistance
for breast and cervical cancer. She felt it was inportant to go
back and get an update on this specific program Her intent was not
to prevent anyone fromtestifying on this bill. She asked DHSS to
pr oceed.

TAPE 01-37, SIDE B

M5. MARY DI VEN, Division of Public Health, DHSS, gave the follow ng
overview of the early detection for breast and cervical cancer
program

The Center for Disease Control (CDC) funds a screening programt hat
provi des screening for breast and cervical cancer. To be eligible,
a wonman's incone nust be |less than 250 percent of the poverty
| evel , or she nust be uninsured or underinsured, or her insurance
deductible nust be too high to nake the costs of screening
affordable. The intent of this programis to detect cancers early
to reduce death and illness fromthe cancers.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- April 23, 2001



CHAIl RMOVAN GREEN asked Ms. Diven to review the original thought
behi nd providing free screening.

MS. DI VEN expl ai ned the federal governnent determ ned that | ower
i ncone wonen were dying from breast and cervical cancer at higher
rates than the rest of the population. Therefore, the governnent
created this programto provide free screening for early detection.
The program i ncl uded outreach to attract wonen who were not getting
an annual screening. She noted all states have signed onto this
program

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked what choices the state was given regarding
the poverty level when it signed onto that program

M5. DIVEN said the eligibility cap was recommended at 250 percent
of the poverty level, which is what the state chose. The CDC did
not propose a |lower range or a floor. She noted that there is a
range of eligibility rates that other states have selected. The
|l owest is 185 percent with one state at that range, while the high
end is 250 percent with 35 states at that range.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked what woul d have happened had Al aska chosen
133 percent.

MS. DI VEN said DHSS woul d have screened fewer wonen and woul d have
detected fewer wonen w th cancer

CHAl RWMOVAN GREEN asked if the state could have set the limt at 133
percent.

M5. DI VEN said she believes that the CDC told DHSS that it was to
use the 250 percent |evel because Al aska's screeni ng nunbers were
not hi gh.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE sai d she woul d get the answer to that question
for the conmttee.

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN said she read that the CDC had a range, which is
what she is trying to establish.

Nunber 2160

SENATOR DAVI S asked if people whose incone is at 133 percent of the
poverty level would already be covered. She said she thought the
purpose of SB 38 was to pick up wonen whose incone was above that
| evel .

M5. NANCY VELLER, Division of Medical Assistance, explained that

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- April 23, 2001



not everyone who is lowincone is eligible for Medicaid. A single
adult without children who is not elderly or disabled is not likely
to be eligible for Medicaid.

SENATOR DAVIS asked if that would be the case if that person's
income was at 133 percent of the poverty |evel.

M5. WELLER said that person would not be eligible even if their
i ncone was at 20 percent of the poverty |evel.

SENATOR W LKEN noted that on pages 12 through 16 (Notice of
Availability of Funds) of the federal law, the floor for
eligibility is set out at 100 percent of the poverty |evel.

M5. DIVEN pointed out those nunbers do not pertain to
qualifications for the program those nunbers apply if a fee is
charged so that no fee can be charged to a wonan who is at 100
percent of the poverty |evel.

COMWM SSIONER PERDUE clarified that, regarding Senator Davis's
gquestion about eligibility for Medicaid, eligibility depends on
whether a wonan is covered under the Tenporary Aid for Needy
Famlies (TANF) program or whether she is covered under a
disability program or in general. She asked Ms. Weller to
el aborate on the criteria.

M5. VELLER expl ained that Medicaid is a categorical program so that
clients generally have to fit within one of the foll ow ng groups:
famlies wth children, pregnant wonen, elderly, or disabled.
Therefore a woman whose children are grown, but who is not 65 or
ol der or permanently disabled, will not be eligible for Mdicaid,
regardl ess of her incone or how sick she m ght be.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE added that wonen in those groups would be
covered at a different inconme level. Wnen eligible for the TANF
program are covered at 72 percent of the poverty |evel; disabled
wonen are covered at up to 250 percent of the poverty level. She
noted the purpose of SB 38 is to fill in the hole of incone
eligibility for wonmen who are not yet 65 but whose children may be
grown. Those wonen conprise a very inportant target popul ation for
ri sk of breast and cervical cancer.

Nunber 1974

SENATOR W LKEN asked Comm ssioner Perdue to let the conmttee know
what the floor is regarding income eligibility.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE agr eed.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- April 23, 2001



SENATOR LEMAN asked Conmi ssioner Perdue to provide the conmttee
wth a chart of the eligibility level in all states that
participate in this program

SENATOR DAVI S asked if a woman is determned to be eligible for
screening at the 185 percent |level, her treatnment eligibility would
be at the sanme |evel.

COW SS|I ONER PERDUE said that is correct.

M5. VWELLER told the conmmittee that Congress enacted legislation to
provide this Medicaid option |ast Decenber (2000). This new option
is for wonen who have been screened through the CDC breast and
cervical cancer detection program The Medicaid option is nore
limted than the CDC program because wonmen with any creditable
coverage are not eligible. The CDC program screens wonen who are
underi nsured or have high deductibles or have an insurance policy
t hat excludes these services. She noted Al aska Native wonen were
precluded fromthis option because of Indian Health Service (IHS)
coverage, which has led to sonme confusion about the CGovernor's
letter. In that letter, the Governor noted that 70 wonen were
potentially eligible for the screening programbut the fiscal note
covers 42 wonen because Al aska Native wonmen were excl uded.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if this programis being devel oped in Al aska
for 42 wonen in the first year.

M5. VWELLER said that is correct. She added that the fiscal note
estimates were taken from actual Medicaid expenditures for clients
with breast and cervical cancer who were qualified for services
under anot her category.

Number 1862

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN asked if the majority of wonen in need in Al aska
al ready recei ve coverage through other Medicaid prograns.

M5. WELLER said a much Ilarger nunber are already receiving
treatment under Medicaid than are potentially eligible under the
new opti on.

COMM SSI ONER PERDUE cl arified that question really applies to al
worren in Al aska who have cancer, many of whom woul d not qualify for
this program and who do not have insurance. She said one of the
reasons this bill is inportant is that early detection and
treatnment of these di seases inproves the outcone renarkably.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -13- April 23, 2001



CHAIl RMOVAN GREEN asked if early detection and treatnment has the
sane result for other diseases.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE replied there are many di seases for which early
detection is equally inportant, such as gl aucoma and heart di sease.
Sone of those screenings are available at the Al aska Health Fairs.

CHAI RAMOVAN GREEN said she believes it is inportant to revi ew what
is not covered in Al aska because there is no enabling |egislation.
She asked if the optional groups, under Medicaid, can be added by
DHSS t hrough regul ati on.

M5. WELLER answered that the document entitled Medicaid Services
and G oups not in Current State Law contains a |ist of other
Medi cai d services or groups that have budgetary inplications but
may not require |egislation.

CHAl RNWNOVAN GREEN asked what the services for 12 nonth conti nuous
eligibility for children entails.

MS. VELLER explained that the 12 nonth continuous eligibility for
children was an option that was added to the Medicaid statute when
the Denali Kid Care program was created. It is allowed under
federal law, the idea being to get children into the program and
keep themon it for continuity of health care so that once they
apply they are eligible for an entire year. Right now, DHSS has
the authority under state |aw to provide coverage under Medicaid
for 12 nonths but it is covering those clients for six nonths.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked what the non-energency transportation within
comuni ties of residence service is about.

MS. VELLER said that Medicaid now pays for transportati on services
bet ween comunities but it does not pay for transportation services
within a comunity, so that transportation to and froma doctor or
dentist within Anchorage is not covered for an Anchorage client.

Nunmber 1610
CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked what is covered under school based services.

M5. VELLER expl ai ned that category would cover actual health care
services provided in schools, such as therapy.

CHAl RWOMAN GREEN asked if the services for tobacco cessation and

offering nore liberal financial eligibility and coverage of
policies are categories that could be enhanced.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -14- April 23, 2001



MS. VELLER said DHSS is allowed, under federal rules, to disregard
addi tional inconme or assets in order to make nore people eligible
for the Medicaid program

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN noted the list contains a whole raft of options
that requires |legislative approval. The one she hears the nost
about is adult dental services.

COWMM SSI ONER PERDUE acknow edged that current Medicaid services in
that area are | acking.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN said the committee has to | ook at, whenever a new
program is considered, how these other services that could be
provi ded but have never been adopted conpare. She said it is
especially difficult when the commttee is faced with a bill that
will treat 42 people this year and will provide services for nore
people in the future.

Nunber 1518

SENATOR DAVI S asserted that the screening program for breast and
cervical cancer already exists and it is provided for wonen whose

income is up to 250 percent of the poverty level. She asked if the
state does not participate in the Medicaid option for treatnent of
t hose cancers, whether it will | ose the screening program

COW SSI ONER PERDUE sai d DHSS does have sone flexibility on where
to set the screening, but if it tightens the eligibility criteria
for screening, it wll be returning federal noney.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked what continuation of the CDC program for
screening has to do with whether or not Al aska decides to
participate in the Medicaid option for breast and cervical cancer
treat ment.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE sai d she bel i eves Senator Davis was aski ng what
woul d happen if the state |lowered the screening eligibility.

SENATOR W LKEN asked if the change in federal funding is shown in
any of the docunentation provided.

M5. DIVEN said it is not because Al aska's screening |level was set
at 250 percent of the poverty level in the grant application to the
CDC.

SENATOR WLKEN asked if the eligibility limt was set at 185
percent, for exanple, what DHSS woul d trade.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -15- April 23, 2001



MS. DI VEN answered, "Federal funds and the nunber of wonen whose
cancers are detected early.™

SENATOR W LKEN asked if that is shown in the docunmentation.

M5. DIVEN said it is not because the current agreenment with CDC was
set at 250 percent.

SENATOR LEMAN asked if DHSS has a chart of the incone eligibility
gui del ines used by other states for treatment under Medicaid for
breast and cervical cancer.

M5. DI VEN explained the treatnent is set at the screening |evel.
They must be the sane.

SENATOR LEMAN asked if the eligibility criteria for treatnment is
changed, the criteria for screening nust be changed.

M5. DIVEN said that is correct.

SENATOR LEMAN asked why the CDC would care if Al aska wanted to
screen at a higher incone level, if the state pays for it.

M5. DI VEN asked if Senator Leman was asking whether the state could
set the eligibility criteria at 200 percent for screening but use
state general funds for the other 50 percent.

SENATOR LEMAN sai d yes, or use sone other source of nopney to nake
up the 50 percent.

M5. DI VEN said, to her understanding, that would not conflict with
the rules of the programbut it would increase the anount of state
general funds needed, rather than wusing the federal funds
avai | abl e.

SENATOR DAVI S asked why Senator Leman would want to change that
even if the state portion was from a stream of noney other than
general funds. That other stream of noney could be used for
sonething else while the federal funds are already available for
the sane purpose. She also asked if 250 percent of the poverty
| evel equal s about $52,200 net for a famly of four.

MS. DI VEN said that is the gross incone.
COM SSI ONER PERDUE indicated that the profile of the typical
client who will be helped by SB 38 is a m ddl e-aged or ol der woman.

If a woman has raised several children but they are no |onger
dependents, her inconme, to be eligible wuld have to be about

SENATE HES COW TTEE -16- April 23, 2001



$26, 000 per year. The TANF population is made up, primarily,
younger wonen who are raising children.

CHAIl RAMOVAN GREEN referred to a letter she received about a young
woman who repeatedly presented herself to doctors with synptons of
cancer and was never referred for prescreening. She died within a
year of cervical cancer. She asked if that wonman woul d never have
been covered under this program because she was 23 or 24.

COWM SSI ONER PERDUE sai d the wonan may have, but she was pointing
out that the profile of nbst wonen who would hel ped by SB 38 is
ol der.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN expressed concern about sonme of the descriptions
she has seen about this bill as a programfor ol der wonen over 65,
if it does apply to wonen of all ages who qualify. She noted the
program was supposedly established to elimnate disparity. She
asked what that disparity refers to.

M5. DI VEN answered the disparity is in the nunber of wonmen who die
from breast and cervical cancer who did not receive screening.

Nunber 1064

CHAI RMOMAN GREEN sai d she knows no one in the |egislature who does
not desire to help people but she feels it is ironic that nen with
prostate or other cancers are not offered a simlar option. SB 38
makes a small portion of the popul ation nore special than others
who are suffering from other diseases. She asked Ms. Diven to
di scuss the criteria for the priority popul ations.

M5. DIVEN read [from page 2 of the Notice of Availability of
Funds] :

Criteria for priority popul ati ons are uni nsured or under-
i nsured ol der wonen who are racial, ethnic and cul tural
mnorities, such as American Indians, Alaska Natives,
African- Aneri cans, Hispanic, Asian/Pacific |slanders,
| esbi ans, wormen with disabilities, and for wonen who |ive
in hard to reach conmmunities in urban and rural areas.

She pointed out that those are the wonen who die nore frequently
from breast and cervical cancer

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked how DHSS refers to that criteria.

MS. DI VEN expl ained that the criteria refers to providing outreach
to make sure that an attenpt is made to reach those wonen. A
variety of nmethods for outreach have been used, including the

SENATE HES COW TTEE -17- April 23, 2001



mnisterial association affiliated with the YWA in Anchorage,
door-to-door outreach in low incone zip code areas, coupons in
newsl etters to certain groups, etc. That |anguage says DHSS needs
to put alittle nore effort into reaching those popul ati ons who are
dying at a disproportionately higher rate.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if because of the IHS participation, A aska
Native and Anerican |Indian wonen are not provided treatnment under
Medi cai d.

MS. DI VEN said that is correct.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if wuninsured and underinsured wonmen are
eligible for the screening while only uninsured wonen are eligible
for the treatnent if they are within 250 percent of the poverty
| evel .

MS. DI VEN said that is correct with co-pays.
CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked for a review of the co-pay aspect.
Nunber 760

M5. WELLER explained that the co-paynents and co-insurance for
adults on Medicaid are $50 per day to a nmaxi num of $200 for each
inpatient hospital adm ssion; 5 percent of outpatient hospital
expenses, such as chenotherapy or radiation; $3 per physician
service; and $2 for each prescription drug.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if Medicaid can charge a prem um
MS. VELLER said Medicaid cannot charge prem uns.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE st ated that DHSS supports SB 38 and she noted
that, regarding why this population is being separated out,
Congress has given the states an opportunity to enter into a cost
agreenent to nmake a significant difference in a |limted nunber of
wonen's |ives. It is a nodest proposal: it will not solve the
probl em of access of care for all wonen who need breast or cervical
cancer treatnent. DHSS is faced everyday with dealing with people
who fall outside of the Iine for governnment help, therefore they
are famliar with the arbitrary nature of this type of coverage.
It is a sad fact of life. She understands that the conmttee is
struggling with that issue, but that is the world we live in. She
felt the question before the commttee is whether a state
i nvestment of $175,000 for this population is noney well spent to
save lives. She asked the commttee to support the bill

Number 607
SENATOR LEMAN expressed concern about DHSS s collection of data

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 18- April 23, 2001



regarding its ability to provide the legislature with information
regarding the link of certain behaviors to breast and cervical
cancer. He noted that DHSS acknow edged a |ink between tobacco use
but he has read a fair amount of research that denonstrates a high
correlation with other behaviors. He asked if government puts
noney into fixing a problemwhen it occurs, whether it shouldn't be
putting noney into preventing the problens. He said he recognizes
that cancer strikes at random sonetinmes and there are no apparent
| i nkages but there are sone behaviors that can be changed. He asked
if DHSS is commtted to identifying those correlations and
i nvesting effort into changi ng those behaviors to mnimze probl ens
| at er on.

COW SSI ONER PERDUE replied that she feels Senator Leman has a very
good point in that the approach to public health should be to | ook
at ways to mnimze the risk for the next generation. She pointed
out the screening program entails taking nedical histories of
wonen, |ooking at lifestyles, providing counseling, and collecting
forensic data on the famly to let wonmen know if they are high
risk. That approach is being taken on a one-to-one basis in
doctors' offices.

SENATOR LEMAN sai d he does not expect to see individual data but he
woul d hope that DHSS could start |ooking at data so that it can
come to some conclusions and suggest changes. He said he would
want to know all of the risk factors for cervical or breast cancer

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked Ms. Carol Edwards to testify as she will not
be available to testify next week.

Nunmber 388

M5. CAROL EDWARDS, an oncol ogy nurse and a nenber of the Al aska
Nur ses Associ ation, and current health policy liaison and a forner
director on the board of the Oncol ogy Nursing Society, said during
her 20 years as an oncol ogy nurse she has cared for many wonen with
cancer, particularly breast cancer. It is a devastating experience
for any individual to receive a diagnosis of cancer. She has |ong
advocated early screening and detection of cancer as it is the nost
inmportant way to inprove the quality of life and it saves doll ars.
If cancer is found early, it is often treatable and cured. However,
that can only occur if the cancer is treated. She believes it is
i nhumane and cruel to offer testing and di agnosis of cancer but not
treatment. Qur national governnent has provided funds to screen
and di agnose breast and cervical cancer and it has provided 70
percent of the dollars needed to treat those cancers. Qur state
must provide only 30 percent of the cost. Wnen diagnhosed with
cancer worry not only about their future but the future of their
famlies. She asked the conmttee to not ask her to tell themthere
is no hope of life because the governnent will not provide the
noney for treatnent.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -19- April 23, 2001



SENATOR LEMAN pointed out that a previous testifier told the
commttee that anyone in Alaska who has cancer is able to get
treatment as hospitals do not turn people away. The question
instead is who will pay for it. He said the conmttee is debating
the issue of cost shifting, not whether treatnment should be
provi ded.

SENATOR DAVI S t hanked Ms. Edwards for her testinony and said Ms.
Edwar ds was saying the federal government will pay for 70 percent

of the treatnent. She believes the state should support that
program ot herw se wonen who are diagnosed will have to figure out
who will provide services and will force themto ask for a handout

when they are in pain and agony.
TAPE 01-38, SIDE A
SENATOR DAVI S stated support for SB 38.

M5. EDWARDS said, regarding Senator Leman's question about the
behavi oral risks for cancer and education, there is a |ink between
cervical cancer and sexually transmtted diseases, therefore
education for young people regarding protection and abstinence
woul d have an inpact. She said she strongly agrees with Senator
Leman regardi ng the need for education. She has advocated for the
use of tobacco noney for tobacco cessation prograns and education
for youth. She suggested using that sane source of noney for an
educati on program about cervical cancer.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN r epeat ed her concern is that SB 38 raises a public
policy issue in which the governnment has chosen two particul ar
di agnoses for which it raises the incone limt, while it ignores
all other diagnoses. She suggested that maybe the governnent
shoul d be | ooki ng at cancer treatnment coverage for everyone in the
state. She noted all cancers are special, which is why this issue
is so troublesone for the conmttee. She pointed out that none of
the other optional prograns on the Medicaid list are being
considered at this tinme and sone of those prograns have a far
greater constituency. She referred to a docunent fromthe Health
Care Financing Adm nistration (HCFA) that contained frequently
asked questions and answers about the Breast and Cervical Cancer
Prevention and Treatnent Act of 2000 and asked how a woman woul d
access the CDC Title XV funds program

M5. DIVEN said the CDC Title XV funds program is the screening
program

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked how she would find out where services are
provi ded under that program

M5. DI VEN said that she would go to one of the screening providers

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 20- April 23, 2001



or she could call the 800 nunber on the coupon or advertisenment for
i nformati on about the | ocation of screening providers.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if she would be referred to a physician's
of fice.

M5. DI VEN said she would be referred to a physician who is enrolled
in the CDC program

CHAI RMOMAN GREEN asked how many physicians are enrolled in Al aska,
in general.

M5. DI VEN said there are 38 screening providers and 59 di agnostic
providers in the state.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked if they differ.

M5. DI VEN said they do but a mammogram coul d be considered to be
screeni ng or diagnostic, depending on the type. A woman m ght go
to a nurse practitioner for cervical cancer screening and a
gynecol ogi st for the col poscopy for the diagnosis. A wonman m ght go
to a physician for a screening who finds a lunp and then be
referred to a surgeon for a fine needle aspiration to find out if
the lunp is malignant.

CHAl RWOMAN GREEN asked if that is in the referral after the
screeni ng.

M5. DI VEN said the CDC program covers the screening and di agnostic
phase.

CHAl RMOVAN GREEN asked Ms. Diven to describe the first option under
which CDC all ows grantees the flexibility to extend the definition
of "screened."

M5. DIVEN said the first option applies to providers enrolled in
t he CDC-funded program

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked for an exanple of sonmeone who is funded in
part by Title XV funds.

M5. DI VEN said that mght apply to a practice with five physicians
who are enrolled providers. In Alaska, DHSS enrolls them as
providers in the program

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked Ms. Diven to explain the grant or contract
options for providers.

M5. DIVEN said sone states provide grants; Al aska has provider
agreenents in which it pays on a fee-for-service basis.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -21- April 23, 2001



CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if the provider agreenents are nade in
advance of services.

M5. DI VEN said they are. She also explained that wonmen woul d al so
be eligible for Medicaid treatnent if they have been screened by
health centers that do not receive Title XV funds but provide
services to | ow i ncome wonen.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked if a worman coul d get screened and then get
retroactive approval for that provider.

M5. DIVEN said no, and that Chairwoman G een has the list of
enrol | ed providers.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked for an expl anati on of whether there is any
inconme test under Medicaid for wonen under this new eligibility
criteria.

M5. VEELLER expl ai ned that wonen who are already found to be incone
eligible for the CDC program cannot be required to undergo anot her
inconme eligibility test by the state.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked if an eligible wonan coul d have assets.
M5. VELLER said she coul d.

M5. DIVEN said that question is not part of the eligibility
criteria so that question is not asked.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN said that the state cannot inpose the typical
Medicaid asset or eligibility standards for treatnment on wonen
whose eligibility is based on CDC screening which sets up a
distinct standard for this one group of Medicaid recipients.

M5. DI VEN said there are nmultiple standards for Medicaid clients.

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN asked if those other standards can be applied to
this group of wonen.

M5. VELLER said the 250 percent income standard is the only incone
rel at ed standard.

CHAl RAMOVAN  GREEN noted that the Health Care Financing
Adm nistration (HCFA) has found that asset rel ated questions would
be appropriate as part of the Medicaid application process only to
the extent necessary to determne if the individual is otherw se
eligible for Medicaid. She asked whether DHSS determ nes when
wonen are being screened whether they are otherwise eligible for
Medi cai d.

M5. WELLER said it does and would put theminto a regul ar Medi cai d-

SENATE HES COW TTEE -22- April 23, 2001



eligibility category.

M5. DI VEN said that would be done during the screening process
because that woul d cover the screening costs al so.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked what questions can be asked for the
screeni ng.

M5. DI VEN sai d wonmen are asked whet her they have insurance to cover
the screening but there is no asset test.

SENATOR W LKEN asked for clarification of question 10.

M5. WVELLER said these wonen are already eligible for the CDC
pr ogram The docunment says that Medicaid cannot require an
addi tional incone test of the CDC clients. She reads the docunent
to say no, these wonmen have already been found to be incone
eligible for the CDC screening program so Medicaid would not do
anot her incone test for the treatnment program

SENATOR LEMAN asked if passive incone or capital gains are
considered in the incone test.

MS5. WELLER said the incone test is based on gross incone.

CHAl RWOVAN GREEN asked if that includes the permanent fund
di vi dend.

M5. WELLER said it depends on when a person applies because the
Medi caid application is prospective and i s based on the nonth when
the application is submtted.

CHAI RAWOVAN GREEN sai d she thought it was based on annual i ncone.

M5. DIVEN said there is an annual and nonthly schedul e. The annual
schedul e is divided by 12.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN asked whi ch schedul e DHSS uses regul arly.
MS. DI VEN said for the screening program either can be used.

CHAl RAMOVAN GREEN asked if there were any further questions. [There
wer e none. |

SENATOR DAVI S conment ed that she appreciates all of the information
that has been provided on the Medicaid program and she thanks
Chai rwonman Geen for bringing a lot of information to the
commttee's attention. She believes a ot of work needs to be done
and that she can see the need for further work on this issue by the
commttee. However, she believes the problens with the Medicaid
system shoul d not be tied to SB 38 because SB 38 is a way to start

SENATE HES COW TTEE -23- April 23, 2001



hel pi ng peopl e.

CHAI RWOVAN GREEN t hanked all participants. She expressed concern
that there is no incentive in federal guidelines to decrease the
nunber of Medicaid recipients. The prograns have been designed
wi th an enphasis on increasing the nunber of recipients. She said
the conmttee would be rem ss to overl ook what these prograns wl |l
cost the state. She then adjourned the neeting at 3:34 p. m

#

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 24- April 23, 2001



